
           

Workers’ Compensation and
Employer Liability Trust Board
Regular Meeting

  
  

February 3, 2022 | 4:00 p.m.
Council Chambers Conference Room       
88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ
or Webex 1-415-655-0001
code 2597 640 4363 password JEaZpKt9b28

  

 
  

Board Members
Alexander Myer, Chair
Michael Bohnert, Vice Chair
Lily Longacre, Secretary
Terry Bond
Val Gale

 
Pursuant to Resolution No. 4464 of the City of Chandler and to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is
hereby given to the members of the Workers’ Compensation and Employer Liability Trust
Board and to the general public that the Workers’ Compensation and Employer Liability Trust
Board will hold a REGULAR MEETING open to the public on Thursday, February 3, 2022, at
4:00 p.m., at Council Chambers Conference Room, 88 E. Chicago Street, Chandler, AZ or
via Webex by dialing 1-415-655-0001, Access Code 2597 640 4363 and passcode
JEaZpKt9b28.

Persons with disabilities may request a reasonable modification or communication aids and
services by contacting the City Clerk's office at (480) 782-2181(711 via AZRS). Please make
requests in advance as it affords the City time to accommodate the request.  Agendas are
available in the Office of the City Clerk, 175 S. Arizona Avenue.  
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Workers’ Compensation and Employer Liability Trust Board
Regular Meeting Agenda - February 3, 2022

 
           

Call to Order/Roll Call
 

Scheduled/Unscheduled Public Appearances
Members of the audience may address any item not on the agenda. State Statute prohibits the Board or
Commission from discussing an item that is not on the agenda, but the Board or Commission does listen to your
concerns and has staff follow up on any questions you raise.
 

Consent Agenda
Items listed on the Consent Agenda may be enacted by one motion and one vote. If a discussion is required by
members of the Board or Commission, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion and
determination will be made if the item will be considered separately.
 

1. November 18, 2021 City of Chandler Workers' Compensation and Employer
Liability Trust Board Minutes

  Move to approve the Chandler Workers' Compensation and Employer Liability
Trust Board minutes from November 18, 2021.

 

Briefing
 

2. Rate Contribution and Reserve Recommendation - Management Services 
 

3. Actuarial Audit Report - Oliver Wyman
 

4. Financial Audit Report - Heinfeld Meech
 

5. Financial Statements - Management Services
 

6. Investment Report - Management Services
 

Action Agenda
 

7. Resolution No. WC-009
  Move to approve Resolution No. WC-009 for the City of Chandler Workers'

Compensation and Employer Trust Liability Trust Fund Board Recommending Workers'
Compensation Contribution and Reserve Level for Fiscal Year 2022-23.
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Member Comments/Announcements
 

Calendar
 

8. Next meeting is scheduled for Thursday, June 16, 2022 (combined meeting).   
 

Informational
 

9. Financial Statements   
 

10. Investment Report   
 

11. Excess Insurance Renewal   
 

12. CorVel Contract Renewal   
 

13. New Members and Election of Officers   
 

Adjourn
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ITEM  1 

Workers’ Compensation And Employer Liability Trust Board      Human
Resources  Memo No. 
       

Date: 02/03/2022
To: Workers’ Compensation And Employer Liability Trust Board
From: Teresa Canjar, Management Assistant
Subject: November 18, 2021 City of Chandler Workers' Compensation and

Employer Liability Trust Board Minutes

Proposed Motion:
Move to approve the Chandler Workers' Compensation and Employer Liability
Trust Board minutes from November 18, 2021.

Attachments
11-18-21 Minutes 



Meeting Minutes
Workers’ Compensation and Employer Liability Trust 

Board
Regular Meeting

November 18, 2021 | 4:00 p.m.
Council Chambers Conference Room
88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ

Call to Order
The meeting was called to order by Chairman Myer at 4:04 p.m.

Roll Call
Board Attendance Other Attendance
Chair Alex Myer Fernanda Osgood, Benefits/Compensation Manager
Vice Chair Michael Bohnert Kristi Smith, Accounting Manager
Secretary Lily Longacre Rae Lynn Nielsen, HR Director
Val Gale Roni Laxa, Assistant City Attorney

Teresa Canjar, Management Assistant
Absent
Terry Bond

Scheduled and Unscheduled Public Appearances

Consent Agenda and Discussion

1. September 16, 2021Minutes 
Vice Chair Bohnert made a motion to approve the minutes as presented from the September 16, 
2021, meeting of the City of Chandler Workers’ Compensation and Employer Liability Trust Board, 
seconded by Ms. Longacre, motion carried. 

Briefing

1. Financial Statements
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Statement of Net Position as of September 30, 2021
Kristi Smith advised the Board that the total assets were $14,775,342, cash is up $700,000 from last 
quarter, and Due from the City is down about $510,000. Total liabilities is $31,000, down $75,000 
because no accounts payable were reported this quarter. The unrestricted net position is 
$14,744,342 which is up from last quarter. When you compare the Net Reserve to 6/30/20, there is 
a surplus of almost $3.4 million. The Trust audit has been completed by Heinfeld Meech and the 
results will be presented at the February 2, 2022, meeting. Special thank you to Human Resources 
staff for all the information they provided. 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – September 30, 2021
The 2021 Budget prorated for 3 months. The total actual operating revenues are $1,193,370 which 
is slightly over budget. Operating expenses are under budget at $945,547. The actual operating 
Income is $247,823 which is higher than anticipated. The nonoperating revenues and expenses total
$29,141 and there is a change in net position at $276,964. The ending net position is $14,744,342
which agrees with the Statement of Net Position.

Statement of Cash Flows – September 30, 2021
Kristi Smith advised the Board that this report shows the inflows and outflows of cash by activity. 
The Cash and Investments total $14,571,252 which agrees with the Statement of Net Position.

2. Investment Report – September 30, 2021
Kristi Smith provided a brief overview of the Investment Performance Review. The report looks a 
little different because they have changed their name to PFM Asset Management LLC and are now 
under the US Bank umbrella. The portfolio statistics yield at cost is 0.50% which is down from 0.56% 
in the previous quarter. Yield at Market is 0.32% which is the same as last quarter. Effective Duration 
is at 1.87 as compared to the prior quarter of 1.83. The Benchmark Effective Duration is 1.83. The 
money market rate for Wells Fargo (now Allspring Global Investments) is 0.01% and PFM is 0.02%, 
which is in line with the last quarter. The Sector Allocation has been pretty consistent with prior 
quarters. 

Calendar
The next regular meeting will be held on Thursday, February 3, 2022, at 4:00 p.m., in the Council 
Chambers Conference Room, 88 E. Chicago St.

Informational Items
Agenda Items for Future Meeting Dates

Financial Audit Report – Heinfeld Meech
Financial Statements – Management Services
Investment Report – Management Services
Rate Contribution and Reserve Recommendation – Management Services
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Adjourn
Mr. Gale made a motion to adjourn the meeting of the City of Chandler Workers’ Compensation and 
Employer Liability Trust Board of November 18, 2021, at 4:12 p.m., seconded by Vice Chair Bohnert, motion 
carried. 

______________________________ ______________________________
Teresa Canjar, Secretary Alexander Myer, Chair



ITEM  2 

Workers’ Compensation And Employer Liability Trust Board      Human
Resources  Memo No. 
       

Date: 02/03/2022
To: Workers’ Compensation And Employer Liability Trust Board
From: Teresa Canjar, Management Assistant
Subject: Rate Contribution and Reserve Recommendation - Management Services 

Attachments
Rate Contribution and Reserve Analysis 



Actuarial Report Comparison June 30, 2020 June 30, 2021
 Change from 

Prior Year 

Estimated Unpaid Losses & ALAE 8,795,715              10,458,761             1,663,046          
Projected Ultimate Losses & ALAE 2,555,000              2,700,000               145,000             

11,350,715            13,158,761             1,808,046          
15.9%

Audit Report Comparison June 30, 2020 June 30, 2021
 Change from 

Prior Year 

Net Position, restated 3,705,693              4,001,471               295,778             
IBNR & Case Reserves 8,975,715              10,458,761             1,483,046          
Net Position w/o IBNR 12,681,408            14,460,232             1,778,824          

14.0%

Amount over (under) 1,330,693              1,301,471               

Reserve Analysis
 Actual FY 

19/20  Actual FY 20/21 
 Estimated FY 

21/22 
 Proposed FY 

22/23 
Beginning Fund Balance 9,521,901       12,325,282           14,467,378            15,270,137       
Revenues
   Contribution to Fund/Int Income 4,629,344        4,795,083              4,443,000               4,483,700          
   Transfer In from Utilites for Safety Pos. 55,288             57,286                    58,971                    58,922               
   Transfer In from General Fund 1,000,000        -                          -                           -                     
   Transfer In for Muni FF Cancer Reimb Fd -                    -                          676,429                  676,429             
Total Revenues 5,684,632        4,852,369              5,178,400               5,219,051          

Expenditures
        Operating Expenditures (958,842)          (873,839)                (1,970,641)              (2,173,828)        
        Claim Expenditures (1,922,409)       (1,836,434)             (2,405,000)              (3,000,000)        
Total Expenditures (2,881,251)       (2,710,273)             (4,375,641)              (5,173,828)        

Ending Fund Balance 12,325,282     14,467,378           15,270,137            15,315,360       

Actuarially Calculated "Nominal/Central Level" (6/30/21 report) 13,158,761       

Projected Fund Balance for FY 2022-23 over Nominal/Central Level 2,156,599          

FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23
 Change in 

Contribution 
Ongoing Contribution 4,383,700              4,383,700               -                     

 Recommendation of Change in City Contribution to     
Trust for FY 2022-23 

Workers' Compensation and Employer Liability Trust
Contribution and Reserve Analysis for FY 2022-23

 Nominal/Central Value 

 Net Position 



ITEM  3 

Workers’ Compensation And Employer Liability Trust Board      Human
Resources  Memo No. 
       

Date: 02/03/2022
To: Workers’ Compensation And Employer Liability Trust Board
From: Teresa Canjar, Management Assistant
Subject: Actuarial Audit Report - Oliver Wyman

Attachments
Summary 
Actuarial Audit Report 



















































































































































ITEM  4 

Workers’ Compensation And Employer Liability Trust Board      Human
Resources  Memo No. 
       

Date: 02/03/2022
To: Workers’ Compensation And Employer Liability Trust Board
From: Teresa Canjar, Management Assistant
Subject: Financial Audit Report - Heinfeld Meech

Attachments
Financial Audit Report 
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November 11, 2021 
 
 
Board of Trustees 
Chandler Worker’s Compensation and Employer Liability Trust 
 
We have audited the financial statements Chandler Worker’s Compensation and Employer Liability 
Trust (Trust), an internal service fund of the City of Chandler, Arizona, for the year ended  
June 30, 2021. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our 
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards as well 
as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated 
such information in our engagement letter provided to you during the planning phase of the audit.  
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following matters related to our 
audit. 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by Chandler Worker’s Compensation and Employer Liability Trust are 
described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the 
application of existing policies was not changed during the year. We noted no transactions entered into 
by the Trust during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All 
significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.  
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions 
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their 
significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them 
may differ significantly from those expected.  
 
The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements are management’s estimates of the 
insurance claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) and case reserves, which are based on information 
provided by the entity’s third party administrator and subsequent claims activity. 
 
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing 
our audit. 
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Audit Adjustments 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during 
the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level 
of management. During the course of the audit we did not identify any misstatements which require 
communication.   
 
In addition, as part of the professional services we provided to the Trust we assisted with the 
preparation of the financial statements and the notes to financial statements. In providing these services 
we prepared adjusting journal entries (if necessary) to convert the accounting records to the basis of 
accounting required by generally accepted accounting principles. If applicable, those adjusting journal 
entries have been provided to management who reviewed and approved those entries and accepted 
responsibility for them.   
 
Disagreements with Management 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during 
the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the 
management representation letter provided to us at the conclusion of the audit. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to the Trust’s financial statements or a determination 
of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards 
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant 
facts.  To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants regarding auditing 
and accounting matters. 
 
Discussions with Management 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management throughout the course of the year. However, these discussions 
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition 
to our retention as the Trust’s auditors. 
 
Other Matters – Accounting Restatement 
The auditor’s report includes an emphasis-of-matter paragraph related to the Trust’s inclusion of 
actuarially-determined case reserves in the current year claims liability. As a result of this change, and 
as discussed in Note 4 to the financial statements, the beginning net position has been restated to reflect 
this correction for prior periods. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
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Compliance with Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 
The engagement team, others in our firm, and as appropriate, our firm, have complied with all relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence.  Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C. continually assesses client 
relationships to comply with relevant ethical requirements, including independence, integrity, and 
objectivity, and policies and procedures related to the acceptance and continuance of client 
relationships and specific engagements. Our firm follows the “Independence Rule” of the AICPA Code 
of Professional Conduct and the rules of state boards of accountancy and applicable regulatory 
agencies.  It is the policy of the firm that all employees be familiar with and adhere to the independence, 
integrity, and objectivity rules, regulations, interpretations, and rulings of the AICPA, U.S. 
Government Accountability Office (GAO), and applicable state boards of accountancy. 
 
Responsibility for Fraud 
It is important for both management and the members of the governing body to recognize their role in 
preventing, deterring, and detecting fraud. One common misconception is that the auditors are 
responsible for detecting fraud. Auditors are required to plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements do not include material misstatements caused by fraud. 
Unfortunately most frauds which occur in an organization do not meet this threshold. 
 
The attached document prepared by the Association of Certified Fraud Examiners (ACFE) is provided 
as a courtesy to test the effectiveness of the fraud prevention measures of your organization.  Some of 
these steps may already be in place, others may not. Not even the most well-designed internal controls 
or procedures can prevent and detect all forms of fraud.  However, an awareness of fraud related 
factors, as well as the active involvement by management and the members of the governing body in 
setting the proper “tone at the top”, increases the likelihood that fraud will be prevented, deterred and 
detected.   
 
Other Important Communications Related to the Audit 
Attached to this letter are a copy of the signed engagement letter provided to us at the initiation of the 
audit, and a copy of the management representation letter provided to us at the conclusion of the audit. 
If there are any questions on the purpose or content of these letters please contact the engagement 
partner identified in the attached engagement letter. 
 
Restriction on Use 
This information is intended solely for the use of the members of the Board of Trustees and 
management of Chandler Worker’s Compensation and Employer Liability Trust and is not intended to 
be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
 
Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C. 
Tucson, Arizona 



 

  

Fraud Prevention Checklist 
 

 
The most cost-effective way to limit fraud losses is to prevent fraud from occurring.  This checklist is 
designed to help organizations test the effectiveness of their fraud prevention measures. 

 
1. Is ongoing anti-fraud training provided to all employees of the organization? 

 Do employees understand what constitutes fraud? 

 Have the costs of fraud to the company and everyone in it — including lost profits, adverse 
publicity, job loss and decreased morale and productivity — been made clear to employees? 

 Do employees know where to seek advice when faced with uncertain ethical decisions, and 
do they believe that they can speak freely? 

 Has a policy of zero-tolerance for fraud been communicated to employees through words and 
actions? 

 
2. Is an effective fraud reporting mechanism in place? 

 Have employees been taught how to communicate concerns about known or potential 
wrongdoing? 

 Is there an anonymous reporting channel available to employees, such as a third-party 
hotline? 

 Do employees trust that they can report suspicious activity anonymously and/or 
confidentially and without fear of reprisal? 

 Has it been made clear to employees that reports of suspicious activity will be promptly and 
thoroughly evaluated? 

 Do reporting policies and mechanisms extend to vendors, customers and other outside 
parties? 

 
3. To increase employees’ perception of detection, are the following proactive measures taken 

and publicized to employees? 

 Is possible fraudulent conduct aggressively sought out, rather than dealt with passively? 

 Does the organization send the message that it actively seeks out fraudulent conduct through 
fraud assessment questioning by auditors? 

 Are surprise fraud audits performed in addition to regularly scheduled audits? 

 Is continuous auditing software used to detect fraud and, if so, has the use of such software 
been made known throughout the organization? 

 
 
  



 

  

 
4. Is the management climate/tone at the top one of honesty and integrity? 

 Are employees surveyed to determine the extent to which they believe management acts with 
honesty and integrity? 

 Are performance goals realistic? 

 Have fraud prevention goals been incorporated into the performance measures against which 
managers are evaluated and which are used to determine performance-related compensation? 

 Has the organization established, implemented and tested a process for oversight of fraud 
risks by the board of directors or others charged with governance (e.g., the audit committee)? 

 
5. Are fraud risk assessments performed to proactively identify and mitigate the company’s 

vulnerabilities to internal and external fraud? 
 
6. Are strong anti-fraud controls in place and operating effectively, including the following? 

 Proper separation of duties 

 Use of authorizations 

 Physical safeguards 

 Job rotations 

 Mandatory vacations 
 
7. Does the internal audit department, if one exists, have adequate resources and authority to 

operate effectively and without undue influence from senior management? 
 
8. Does the hiring policy include the following (where permitted by law)? 

 Past employment verification 

 Criminal and civil background checks 

 Credit checks 

 Drug screening 

 Education verification 

 References check 

 
9. Are employee support programs in place to assist employees struggling with addictions, 

mental/ emotional health, family or financial problems? 
 
10. Is an open-door policy in place that allows employees to speak freely about pressures, 

providing management the opportunity to alleviate such pressures before they become 
acute? 
 

11. Are anonymous surveys conducted to assess employee morale? 
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August 9, 2021 

Board of Trustees and Management 

P. O. Box 4008 
Chandler, AZ  85244-4008   

Compensation and Employer Liability Trust (Trust) for the year ended June 30, 2021. We encourage 
you to read this letter carefully as it includes important information regarding the services we will be 
providing to the Trust. If there are any questions on the content of the letter, or the services we will be 
providing, we would welcome the opportunity to meet with you to discuss this information further. 

Audit Scope and Objectives 
We will audit the financial statements and the related notes to the financial statements of Chandler 

as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021.  

Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States provide for certain required 

information, although not part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing 
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of 
our engagement, we will apply certain limited proce
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. These limited procedures will 
consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing 

responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We 
will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. The 
following RSI is required by generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain 
limited procedures, but will not be audited: 

1.

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 

report that includes our opinion about whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in all 
material respects, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements, 
including omissions, can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if there is a substantial 
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment of a reasonable 
user made based on the financial statements.
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An important aspect to our expression of opinions on the financial statements is understanding the 
concept of materiality. Our determination of materiality is a matter of professional judgment and is 
affected by our perception of the financial information needs of users of the financial statements.  In 

1. have a reasonable knowledge of business and economic activities and accounting principles, 
and a willingness to study the information in the financial statements with reasonable diligence;  

2. understand that financial statements are prepared, presented, and audited to levels of 
materiality;  

3. recognize the uncertainties inherent in the measurement of amounts based on the use of 
estimates, judgment, and the consideration of future events; and  

4. make reasonable economic decisions on the basis of the information in the financial statements.  

Audit of the Financial Statements 
We will conduct our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and will include tests of your accounting 
records and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions. As part of 
an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  

We will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management. We will also evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements, including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We will 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) 
misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable 
to the Trust or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the Trust. Because the 
determination of abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to perform 
specific procedures to detect waste or abuse in the financial statements nor do they expect auditors to 
provide reasonable assurance of detecting waste or abuse. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal 
control, and because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is an 
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected by us, even though the audit is 
properly planned and performed in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect 
immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct 
and material effect on the financial statements. However, we will inform the appropriate level of 
management of any material errors, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that 
comes to our attention. We will also inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of 
laws or governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential. We will 
include such matters in the report the Government Auditing Standards report on internal control over 
financial reporting and on compliance and other matters. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to 
the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any later periods for which we are not engaged 
as auditors. 
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We will obtain an understanding of the Trust and its environment, including internal control relevant 
to the audit, sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks and obtain evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override 
of internal control. An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify 
deficiencies in internal control. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, during the 
audit, we will communicate to you and those charged with governance internal control related matters 
that are required to be communicated under professional standards. 

We will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantia
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the 
accounts. Our procedures will also include, as deemed necessary, tests of the physical existence of 
inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain assets and liabilities by correspondence 
with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial institutions. We will also request, if 

they may bill you for responding to this inquiry.  

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies 
or material weaknesses. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion in our report on internal control 
issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. However, during the audit, we will communicate 
to management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that are required to 
be communicated under AICPA professional standards and Government Auditing Standards. 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
s compliance with applicable laws, regulations, 

contracts, and agreements, including grant agreements. However, the objective of those procedures 
will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our 
report on compliance issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

Reporting
We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of 
Employer Liability Trust
of the Trust. Circumstances may arise in which our report may differ from its expected form and 
content based on the results of our audit. Depending on the nature of these circumstances, it may be 
necessary for us to modify our opinion or add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph to our 
auditor's report, or if necessary, withdraw from this engagement. If our opinion is other than 
unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to 
complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed an opinion, we may decline to express an 
opinion or withdraw from this engagement.
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We will issue a written report on Internal control over financial reporting and compliance with 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and award agreements, noncompliance with which could 
have a material effect on the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 
The Government Auditing Standards report on internal control over financial reporting and on 
compliance and other matters will include a paragraph that states that (1) the purpose of the report is 
solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, 

and (2) the report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards

Nonaudit Services 
As part of the audit, we will assist with preparation of your financial statements and notes to the 
financial statements. You have expressed your intention to use these nonaudit services within the scope 
of your request for proposal for audit services. These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit and 
such services will not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.  

Upon engagement of the audit we will utilize the general ledger, accounting records, Trust prepared 
schedules and other information provided by Trust personnel in order to prepare the necessary year-
end adjusting journal entries and to prepare drafts of the financial statements and notes to the financial 
statements. You are responsible for the information provided by the Trust and for assuming all 
management responsibilities related to the financial statements, notes to the financial statements, and 
the nonaudit services we provide. You are also responsible for designing, implementing, and 
maintaining internal controls over the financial statements process. Prior to their issuance you will be 
required to acknowledge in the management representation letter that you have reviewed and approved 
the financial statements and acknowledge that you have accepted responsibility for them. Further, you 
are required to designate an individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee the 
nonaudit services we provide; evaluate the adequacy and results of these nonaudit services; and accept 
responsibility for the nonaudit services.  

andards place specific requirements on our provision 
of certain nonaudit services. We are strictly prohibited from assuming management responsibilities or 
making management decisions; therefore, the nonaudit services we provide are limited to those 
indicated above. We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any 
procedure or take any action that could be construed as assuming management responsibilities or 
making management decisions. Accordingly, to maintain our independence it is imperative that 
management understand its responsibilities and is capable of fulfilling these responsibilities. If there 
are any questions or concerns regarding manage
responsibilities we request that you immediately contact us so that we may assess the circumstance 
and our continued independence with respect to providing audit services. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
Our audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility for 
designing, implementing, and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, including monitoring ongoing activities; for the selection and application of accounting 
principles; and for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
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Management is also responsible for making all financial records, and related information available to 
us and for the accuracy and completeness of that information (including information from outside of 
the general and subsidiary ledgers). You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all 
information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements, such as records, documentation, identification of all related parties and all related-
party relationships and transactions, and other matters; (2) additional information that we may request 
for the purpose of the audit; (3) other information as needed to perform an audit under Government 
Auditing Standards; (4) and unrestricted access to persons within the Trust from whom we determine 
it necessary to obtain audit evidence. At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written 
representations from you about the financial statements; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements; and other responsibilities required by generally accepted auditing standards.

misstatements and confirming to us in the representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected 
misstatements aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period 
presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a 
whole. 

Management is responsible for the financial statements and all accompanying information as well as 
all representations contained therein. Management is also responsible for identifying government 
award programs and understanding and complying with the compliance requirements.  

Management is responsible for (1) designing, implementing, establishing and maintaining effective 
internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, including internal controls over federal 
awards, and for evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities, to help ensure that appropriate goals and 
objectives are met; (2) following laws and regulations; (3) ensuring that there is reasonable assurance 
that government programs are administered in compliance with compliance requirements; and (4) 
ensuring that management is reliable and financial information is reliable and properly reported. 
Management is also responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with 
applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection 
and application of accounting principles; for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements, and all accompanying information in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America; and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations 
(including federal statutes) and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements (including award 
agreements). Your responsibilities also include identifying significant contractor relationships in which 
the contractor has responsibility for program compliance and for the accuracy and completeness of that 
information. 

Management is required to disclose in the financial statements the date through which subsequent 
events have been evaluated and whether that date is the date the financial statements were issued or 
were available to be issued.  You agree that you will not date the subsequent event note earlier than 
the date of your management representation letter. 
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Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit 
findings and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report 
copies of previous financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits or studies related to 
the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes 
relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations resulting 
from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits or studies. You are also responsible for 

your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for providing that 
information.  

With regard to the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial 
statements published electronically on your website, management understands that electronic sites are 
a means to distribute information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information contained 
in these sites or to consider the consistency of other information in the electronic site with the original 
document. 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be 
examined and the areas to be tested. Our tests will not include a detailed check of all transactions for 
the period. 

We have identified the following significant risks of material misstatement as part of our audit 
planning: 

1. Management override of controls 
2. Improper revenue recognition 

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including internal 
control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design 
the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Material misstatements may result from (1) 
errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or 
governmental regulations that are attributable to the entity or to acts by management or employees 
acting on behalf of the entity. We will generally communicate our significant findings at the conclusion 
of the audit. However, some matters could be communicated sooner, particularly if significant 
difficulties are encountered during the audit where assistance is needed to overcome the difficulties or 
if the difficulties may lead to a modified opinion. We will also communicate any internal control related 
matters that are required to be communicated under professional standards.  

We expect to begin our audit in August 2021 and conclude audit procedures and date our report in 
December 2021. 
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Use of Third-Party Service Providers 
We maintain internal policies, procedures, and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of your 
information. We may, depending on the circumstances, use third-party service providers in providing 
our professional services. The following service providers may be utilized in the completion of our 
engagement: 

You hereby consent and authorize us to use the above service providers, if deemed necessary, to 
complete the professional services outlined in this letter. 

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other 
Mike Hoerig is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing 
the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them. 

We will provide copies of our reports to the Trust; however, management is responsible for distribution 
of the reports and the financial statements. 

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C., and 
constitutes confidential information. However, we may be requested to make certain audit 
documentation available to a cognizant or oversight agency or its designee, a federal agency providing 
direct or indirect funding, the U.S. Government Accountability Office, or other authorized 
governmental agency for the purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to 
carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to such 
audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C., personnel. 
Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the 
aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information 
contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies. 

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five (5) years after the 
report release date, or for any additional period requested by a regulator, cognizant agency, oversight 
agency for audit, or pass through entity. Upon expiration of the five year period, or any additional 
period, we will commence the process of destroying the contents of our engagement files. If we are 
aware that a federal awarding agency, pass through entity, or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we 
will contact the party(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit 
documentation. 

In the event we are required to respond to a subpoena, court order or other legal process for the 
production of documents and/or testimony relative to information we obtained and/or prepared during 
the course of this engagement, you agree to compensate us at our hourly rates, for the time we expend 
in connection with such response, and to reimburse us for all of our out-of-pocket costs incurred in that 
regard. 
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 that may arise from any aspect of our services, 
including this engagement or any prior engagement, will be submitted to mediation. The parties will 
engage in the mediation process in good faith once a written request to mediate has been given by any 
party. Any mediation initiated as a result of this engagement shall be administered by The American 
Arbitration Association, according to its mediation rules before resorting to litigation. The results of 
any such mediation shall be binding only upon agreement of each party to be bound. Each party will 
bear its own costs in the mediation. The fees and expenses of the mediator will be shared equally. 

The nature of our services makes it difficult, with the passage of time, to gather and present evidence 
that fully and fairly establishes the facts underlying any dispute that may arise between us. The parties 
agree that, notwithstanding any statute or law of limitations that might otherwise apply to a dispute, 
including one arising out of this agreement or the services performed under this agreement, for breach 
of contract or fiduciary duty, tort, fraud, misrepresentation or any other cause of action or remedy, any 
action or legal proceeding by you against us must be commenced within twenty four (24) months 

 final audit report under this agreement to you, 
regardless of whether we do other services for you relating to the audit report, or you shall be forever 
barred from commencing a lawsuit or obtaining any legal or equitable relief or recovery. The limitation 
period applies and begins to run even if you have not suffered any damage or loss, or have not become 
aware of the existence or possible existence of a dispute. 

Professional standards prohibit auditors from agreeing to indemnify attest clients for damages, losses 

acts. As such, professional standards will prevail for indemnification clauses included in audit 
contracts. In addition, we are unable to obtain waivers on our professional liability insurance policy 
for certain provisions, including indemnification provisions, provisions requiring the firm to name the 
Trust as an additional insured party, and a waiver of subrogation rights. 

Professional standards require us to be independent with respect to you in the performance of these 
services. Any discussion that you have with our personnel regarding potential employment with you 
could impair our independence with respect to this engagement. Therefore, we request that you inform 
us prior to any such discussions so that we can implement appropriate safeguards to maintain our 
independence and objectivity. Further, any employment offers to any staff members working on this 
engagement without our prior knowledge may require substantial additional procedures to ensure our 
independence. You will be responsible for any additional costs incurred to perform these procedures. 

Our fee for these services will be $6,950. We exercised care in estimating the fee and believe it 
accurately indicates the scope of the work. Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as 
work progresses and are payable on presentation. 

Our fees are based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel, timely receipt of information, and 
the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit, including 
factors beyond our control, such as new accounting pronouncements or legal requirements, additional 
consultation, and assistance in correcting errors in your financial records. We will plan the engagement 
based on the assumption that your personnel will prepare and provide us with the items listed in our 
request for audit information, including preparing requested schedules, retrieving supporting 
documents, and preparing confirmations. If, for whatever reason, your personnel are unavailable to 
provide the necessary assistance in a timely manner, it may substantially increase the work we have to 
do to complete the engagement within the established deadlines, resulting in an increase in fees over 
our original fee estimate. If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and 
arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs. Additional fees incurred will be billed 
at the following hourly rates: Partner - $284; Manager - $207; Senior - $163; Staff - $114. 
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If any term or provision of this agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, such term or 
provision will be deemed stricken, and all other terms and provisions will remain in full force and 
effect. 

Government Auditing Standards require that we provide you with a copy of our most recent external 
peer review report and any letter of comment, and any subsequent peer review reports and letters of 
comment received during the period of the contract. Our 2018 peer review report accompanies this 
letter. 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and believe this letter accurately summarizes the 
significant terms of our engagement.  Please feel free to contact us at any time if you have any questions 
or concerns. If you have any questions regarding this letter, please let us know. If you agree with the 
terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us. 

Very truly yours, 

Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C. 
Tucson, Arizona 

cc: Dawn Lang, Management Services Director 
 Kristi Smith, Accounting Manager 

RESPONSE 

Please indicate the name of the individual responsible for overseeing the nonaudit services of preparing 
the year-end adjusting journal entries and the preparation of the financial statements: 

Name:  __________________________________________________ 

Employer Liability Trust. 

Printed Name:  ____________________________________________ 

Title:  ___________________________________________________ 

Signature:  _______________________________________________ 

Date:  ___________________________________________________ 



Grant Bennett Associates
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

www.gbacpa.com

1375 Exposition Boulevard, Suite 230 P.O. Box 223096
Sacramento, CA 95815 Princeville, HI 96722
916/922 5109 FAX 916/641 5200 888/769 7323

Report on the Firm�s System of Quality Control

August 16, 2018 

To the Shareholders of Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P. C. and the Peer Review Committee of the California Society of 
CPAs 

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Heinfeld, Meech & 
Co., P. C.  (the firm) in effect for the year ended May 31, 2018. Our peer review was conducted in accordance 
with the Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer Reviews established by the Peer Review Board of the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Standards). 

A summary of the nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the procedures performed in a System Review as 
described in the Standards may be found at www.aicpa.org/prsummary. The summary also includes an 
explanation of how engagements identified as not performed or reported in conformity with applicable 
professional standards, if any, are evaluated by a peer reviewer to determine a peer review rating. 

Firm�s Responsibility 
The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality control and complying with it to provide the firm with 
reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all 
material respects. The firm is also responsible for evaluating actions to promptly remediate engagements 
deemed as not performed or reported in conformity with professional standards, when appropriate, and for 
remediating weaknesses in its system of quality control, if any.  

Peer Reviewer�s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the desi
compliance therewith based on our review. 

Required Selections and Considerations 
Engagements selected for review included engagements performed under Government Auditing Standards, 
including compliance audits under the Single Audit Act and an audit of an employee benefit plan. 

As a part of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory entities as communicated by the firm, if 
applicable, in determining the nature and extent of our procedures. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Heinfeld, Meech & Co., 
P. C.  in effect for the year ended May 31, 2018, has been suitably designed and complied with to provide the 
firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable professional 
standards in all material respects. Firms can receive a rating of pass, pass with deficiency(ies) or fail.  Heinfeld, 
Meech & Co., P. C.  has received a peer review rating of pass. 

GRANT BENNETT ASSOCIATES 
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 
Certified Public Accountants 



Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C. 
CPAs and Business Consultants 
10120 N. Oracle Road  
Tucson, AZ  85704   

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of 
ility Trust (Trust), an internal service fund 

of the City of Chandler, Arizona, which comprises the financial position as of June 30, 2021, and 
the respective changes in financial position and cash flows for the period then ended, and the 

e of expressing opinions as to 
whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). 

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. 
Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of 
accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the 
judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by 
the omission or misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount 
could be considered material as a result of qualitative factors. 

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of the date of our signature, the following 
representations made to you during your audit. 

Financial Statements 

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter, 
including our responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

2. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S. 
GAAP and include all properly classified financial information required by generally 
accepted accounting principles to be included in the financial reporting entity. 

3. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

4. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control to prevent and detect fraud. 
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5. Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, including those measured 
at fair value, are reasonable. 

6. Related party relationships and transactions, including revenues, expenditures/expenses, 
loans, transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or 
payable to related parties have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance 
with U.S. GAAP. 

7. Adjustments or disclosures have been made for all events, including instances of 
noncompliance, subsequent to the date of the financial statements that would require 
adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements or in the schedule of findings and 
responses. 

8. The effects of all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments have been 
evaluated, and if necessary, have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance with U.S. 
GAAP. 

9. Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the Trust is contingently liable, if any, have 
been properly recorded or disclosed. 

Information Provided 

10. We have provided you with: 

a. Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records (including information 
obtained from outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers), documentation, and other 
matters and all audit or relevant monitoring reports, if any, received from funding 
sources. 

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit. 

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the Trust from whom you determined it necessary 
to obtain audit evidence. 

d. Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Trustees or summaries of actions of recent 
meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared. 

11. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in 
the financial statements. 

12. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements 
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

13. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the Trust and involves: 
Management, 
Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or 
Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
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14. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspecte
financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, 
or others. 

15. We have no knowledge of any instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or waste or abuse, whose 
effects should be considered when preparing financial statements.  

16. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments 
whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements.  

17. We have disclosed to you the identity of the 
relationships and transactions, including any side agreements. 

Government-specific 

18. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance 
with, or deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.  

19. If applicable we have taken timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud, noncompliance 
with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements that you have reported 
to us. 

20. We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations. 

21. We have identified and communicated to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, 
and other studies related to the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have 
been implemented. 

22. We have identified to you any investigations or legal proceedings that have been initiated 
with respect to the period under audit. 

23. If applicable, we have provided our views on reported findings, conclusions, and 
recommendations, as well as our planned corrective actions, for the report.  

24. The Trust has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or 
classification of assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and net position. 

25. We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts 
and grant agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts, and 
legal and contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds. 

26. We have appropriately disclosed all information for conduit debt obligations in accordance 
with U.S. GAAP. 
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27. We have identified and disclosed to you all instances of identified fraud and suspected fraud 
that we believe have a material effect on the financial statements or other financial data 
significant to the audit objectives, and any other instances that warrant the attention of those 
charged with governance. 

28. We have identified and disclosed to you all instances of identified noncompliance with 
provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we believe have a material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts or other financial data significant to the audit 
objectives. 

29. We have identified and disclosed to you all instances of identified abuse that could be 
quantitatively or qualitatively material to the financial statements or other financial data 
significant to the audit objectives. 

30. There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations 
(including those pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of 
contracts and grant agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose 
effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements, or as a basis for 
recording a loss contingency, or for reporting on noncompliance. 

31. In addition to your audit, you assisted with preparation of the financial statements and notes 
to the financial statements. We acknowledge our responsibility as it relates to those nonaudit 
services, including that  

we assume all management responsibilities;  
oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably within senior 
management, who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, or experience;  
evaluate the adequacy and results of the nonaudit services performed;  
and accept responsibility for the results of the nonaudit services.  

32. We have reviewed, approved, and accepted responsibility for the financial statements, and 
notes to the financial statements.  

33. The Trust has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances 
on such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral. 

34. The Trust has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material 
effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance. 

35. We have followed all applicable laws and regulations in adopting, approving, and amending 
budgets. 

36. If applicable, the financial statements include all component units, appropriately present 
majority equity interest in legally separate organizations and joint ventures with an equity 
interest, and properly disclose all other joint ventures and other related organizations. 

37. The financial statements include all fiduciary activities required by U.S. GAAP. 
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38. The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities in accordance with U.S. 
GAAP. 

39. Components of net position are properly classified and, if applicable, approved. 

40. Investments are properly valued. 

41. With regard to investments and other instruments reported at fair value: 
The underlying assumptions are reasonable and they appropriately reflect 
management's intent and ability to carry out its stated courses of action. 
The measurement methods and related assumptions used in determining fair value are 
appropriate in the circumstances and have been consistently applied. 
The disclosures related to fair values are complete, adequate, and in conformity with 
U.S. GAAP. 
There are no subsequent events that require adjustments to the fair value 
measurements and disclosures included in the financial statements. 

42. If applicable, provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and 
recorded. 

43. Expenses have been appropriately classified in the statement of revenues, expenses and 
changes in net position; and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis. 

44. Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in 
net position. 

45. Special and extraordinary items, if any, are appropriately classified and reported. 

46. Deposits and investment securities are properly classified as to risk and are properly 
disclosed. 

47. y regarding whether to first apply restricted 
or unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted 
and unrestricted net position is available and have determined that net position is properly 
recognized under the policy. 

48. We have disclosed to you all significant estimates and material concentrations known to 
management that are required to be disclosed. Significant estimates are estimates at the 
balance sheet date that could change materially within the next year. Concentrations refer to 
volumes of business, revenues, available sources of supply, or markets or geographic areas 
for which events could occur that would significantly disrupt normal finances within the next 
year. 

49. We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RSI).  The 
RSI is measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of measurement 
and presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period.  We have disclosed 
to you any significant assumptions and interpretations underlying the measurement and 
presentation of the RSI. 
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We have reviewed the drafts of the financial statements and related notes and believe the amounts 
are properly presented based on the books and records of our Trust. We hereby take responsibility 
for the financial statements and authorize Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C. to issue the reports in final 
form and to distribute to those parties as outlined in the contract.  

We understand that at the conclusion of the audit Heinfeld, Meech & Co, P.C. will submit to the 
Board of Trustees a communication to those charged with governance that will include a copy of 
this representation letter and a copy of the engagement letter. 

________________________________________________ ___________________ 
Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager | CFO Date 



ITEM  5 

Workers’ Compensation And Employer Liability Trust Board      Human
Resources  Memo No. 
       

Date: 02/03/2022
To: Workers’ Compensation And Employer Liability Trust Board
From: Teresa Canjar, Management Assistant
Subject: Financial Statements - Management Services

Attachments
Financial Statements 



 
ASSETS
Cash and investments 14,776,429$   
Accrued interest 18,865
Due from City 101,457
     Total assets 14,896,751

LIABILITIES
Claims payable 31,000
     Total current liabilities 31,000

NET POSITION
Unrestricted 14,865,751
     Total net position (1) 14,865,751$   

Notes:  

(1) Net Position as compared to Reserve Goal:
Nominal 

"Central" Value

    Estimated Unpaid Losses & ALAE, as of 6/30/21 10,458,761$          

    Weighted Projected Ultimate Losses & ALAE 2,700,000               

        Reserve Goal Based on 6/30/21 Actuarial Report 13,158,761$          

CITY OF CHANDLER
Chandler Worker's Compensation and Employer Liability Trust

Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2021



    

FY 2021-22 
Budget

FY 2021-22 
Budget 

Prorated Actuals

Budget to 
Actual 

Difference
OPERATING REVENUES
  Contributions:
      Employer self insurance premiums 4,383,700$     2,191,850$     2,217,760$     25,910$         
          Total operating revenues 4,383,700       2,191,850       2,217,760       25,910           

OPERATING EXPENSES
  Personnel services 490,952          245,476          226,273          (19,203)          
  Professional services 339,875          169,938          25,878            (144,060)        
  Operating supplies and maintenance 4,200              2,100              558                  (1,542)            
  Communication and transportation 2,100              1,050              132                  (918)                
  Excess insurance 371,130          371,130          392,736          21,606           
  Premium insurance 95,000            47,500            28,048            (19,452)          
  Other insurance 676,429          676,429          676,429          -                  
  Claims paid 4,595,110       2,297,555       1,202,625       (1,094,930)     
  Other:

  Education and training 2,100              1,050              -                  (1,050)            
  Computer Software 16,389            8,195              6,960              (1,235)            

  Fiduciary Liability Insurance -                  -                  -                  -                  
          Total operating expenses 6,593,285       3,820,422       2,559,639       (1,260,783)     

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (2,209,585)      (1,628,572)      (341,879)         1,286,693      

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
  Interest income (loss) 166,000          83,000            38,207            (44,793)          
  Transfers out to technology fund (3,845)             (3,845)             (3,845)             -                  
  Transfers in from City -                  -                  676,429          676,429         
  Transfers in from Municipal Utilities for Safety Position 58,922            29,462            29,461             (1)                    
          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 221,077          108,617          740,252          631,635         

         Change in net position (1,988,508)      (1,519,955)      398,373          1,918,328      

NET POSITION:
Total net position, as of July 1, 2021 14,467,378     14,467,378     14,467,378     -                  

Total net position, as of December 31, 2021 12,478,870$   12,947,423$   14,865,751$   1,918,328$    

CITY OF CHANDLER
Chandler Worker's Compensation and Employer Liability Trust
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2021



 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
  Cash received for premiums 2,810,547$     
  Cash payments for claims (1,202,625)
  Cash payments to suppliers for other services (1,205,606)
  Cash payments to employees for services (226,273)
        Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 176,043

  Cash received from the City 705,890
        Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 705,890

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
   Investment Income 36,825
       Net cash used from investing activites 36,825

        Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 914,913

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
  Beginning of year 13,861,516
  End of year 14,776,429$   

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
      Operating income (loss) (341,879)$       

            (Increase) decrease in due from City 592,787
            (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
            Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (22,117)
            Increase (decrease) in miscellaneous payables (52,748)
                     Total adjustments 517,922
                     Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 176,043$        

CITY OF CHANDLER
Chandler Worker's Compensation and Employer Liability Trust

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2021
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For the Quarter Ended December 31, 2021

Fixed Income ManagementQUARTERLY MARKET SUMMARY

Summary

►In Q4, U.S. economic conditions were characterized by: (1) a surge in COVID cases
as the Omicron variant spread widely; (2) a sharply falling unemployment rate, rising
wages, and near-record number of job openings; (3) stickier-than-expected inflation as
pent-up consumer demand clashed with continued global supply chain disruptions amid
a tight labor market and; (4) a pivot by the Fed to remove monetary accommodation
more quickly, setting the stage for rate hikes to begin sooner than previously expected.

►The public health situation remained precarious with the emergence of the Omicron
variant to COVID-19. The surge in new cases affected small businesses already
challenged by labor shortages and rising prices due to supply chain challenges.
The labor market continued to recover, with the unemployment rate falling to a cycle
low, plentiful job opportunities and rising wages. Although the economy has largely
rebounded from the pandemic-induced recession, the massive monetary and fiscal
support from the Fed and Congress has triggered a multi-decade surge in inflation.

►While growth is forecast to remain above trend, the real challenge for 2022 is getting
inflation down. Mounting inflationary pressures prompted accelerated tapering of bond
purchases by the Fed and pulled forward expected rate hikes. Tapering is expected to be
complete by mid-March followed by three rate hikes in 2022. The Fed may also let some
of its $8.7 trillion balance sheet roll off sometime later in the year.

Economic Snapshot

►U.S. real GDP growth slowed sharply in Q3 to a modest 2.3%, well below the 6.5%
growth rate in the first half of 2021. The lackluster growth reflected a slowdown in
consumer spending as the Delta variant dampened confidence and behavior. Personal
consumption grew at just 2% compared to the previous quarter’s 12%. Nevertheless,
economists predict a solid rebound for Q4, with the Atlanta Fed forecasting growth of
over 6%.

►The unemployment rate dropped to 3.9% in December, compared to the record low
pre-pandemic level of 3.5%. In the past 50 years, unemployment has only been lower
during the 22 months prior to the pandemic and for one month in 2000. Although the
U.S. economy added a record 6.4 million jobs in 2021, overall employment remains
below its pre-pandemic figure largely due to people dropping out of the labor force This
imbalance created a shortage of workers and kept pressure on wages as employers
battle to attract and retain workers.

►Inflation was shockingly high, with the CPI reaching 7% year-over-year. Sharply
higher prices for gasoline, heating oil and other energy products were most pronounced.
New and used cars continued to show large price increases, but inflation became more
widespread and persistent.

►Manufacturing and services activity chilled a bit with both the ISM Manufacturing and
Non-Manufacturing PMI surveys pulling back at quarter end. Nonetheless, both indices
remain well above the 50-point threshold indicating growth.

►Demand for homes remained exceptionally strong, but inventories are lean, leading  to
even higher prices. Higher prices amid higher mortgage rates will negatively affect
affordability and present a headwind to further price increases. Existing home sales rose

by 1.9% to a 6.46 million-unit annual rate in November, marking the third consecutive 
month of increases, while unseasonably mild weather helped boost housing starts
by 12%. Bolstered by near-record-low inventories and high backlogs, home builder
confidence is near an all-time high.

Interest Rates

►U.S. Treasury yields generally rose in the quarter and the yield curve flattened, as
short- to intermediate-term maturities increased between 30 and 40 bps, led higher by
expectations for faster Fed rate hikes. Meanwhile, rate changes were more muted to
modestly lower on the longer end of the curve, which reflected expectations for longer-
term normalization of inflation and GDP growth. At quarter-end, the yield on a3-month
U.S. Treasury Bill stood at 0.03%, the 2-year note rose to 0.73%, the 5-year note
climbed to 1.26%, the 10-year note increased to 1.51%, while the 30-year ended the
quarter at 1.90%.

►As a result of yield changes over the quarter, U.S. Treasury returns were largely
negative, except for the shortest and longest tenors. For example, the 3-month U.S.
Treasury index returned 0.01% for the quarter and the 10-year U.S. Treasury index
returned 0.75%. Meanwhile, those indexes representing the “belly” of the curve posted
negative returns, with the 2-, 3-, and 5-year Treasury indices returning -0.51%, -0.85%,
and -0.90%, respectively.

Sector Performance
►Investment in non-government sectors was a modest detractor to portfolio
performance in Q4 as yield spreads on most investment-grade (IG) fixed-income sectors
widened off recent rock bottom levels. As a result, most IG spread sectors produced
negative excess returns for Q4, underperforming similar-maturity Treasuries.

►Federal agencies were not immune to the broad spread widening experienced in Q4,
generating slightly negative excess returns. Although callable yield spreads widened
modestly over the quarter due to an uptick in volatility, spreads generally remained low.
Non-callable agencies markedly outperformed their optionable counterparts.

►The taxable municipal sector was one of the best performing IG sectors during Q4,
generating positive excess returns. Municipals performed well as lean supply was met
with robust demand for new issues, ultimately keeping spreads in check.

►IG corporates slightly underperformed in Q4 after consistently being one of the top-
performing sectors in prior quarters, as incremental spreads widened due to rising rates
and the prospects for reduced monetary support from the Fed. As a result, IGcorporates
posted negative excess returns, with longer duration issues underperforming shorter
ones. Underperformance was generally consistent across the quality ratings spectrum.

►Federal agency-backed mortgage-backed security (MBS) excess returns were
generally negative across most collateral and coupon types except 15-year MBS pass-
throughs. Conventional 15-year collateral generated modest outperformance, while
30-year collateral MBS and Agency CMBS underperformed. The Fed’s announcement
of accelerated asset purchase tapering and the looming balance sheet reduction in
combination with slowing refinancing activity has weighed on the sector. It is likely to
persist for at least the near term.
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For the Quarter Ended December 31, 2021

Fixed Income ManagementQUARTERLY MARKET SUMMARY

Economic Snapshot

Labor Market Latest Sep '21 Dec '20

Unemployment Rate Dec'21 3.9% 4.7% 6.7%
Unemployment Rate (left) vs. Change in Non-farm Payrolls (right)

Change In Non-Farm Payrolls Unemployment Rate  
16.0% 10,000K
14.0% 5,000K
12.0% 0
10.0% 5-000K
8.0%

6.0% 10-000K

4.0% 15-000K

2.0% 20-000K

0.0% 25-000K
Dec '18 Jun '19 Dec '19  Jun '20 Dec '20  Jun '21 Dec '21

Change In Non-Farm Payrolls Dec'21 199,000 379,000 -306,000

Average Hourly Earnings (YoY) Dec'21 4.7% 4.5% 5.5%

Personal Income (YoY) Nov'21 7.4% 5.1% 4.8%

Initial Jobless Claims (week) 1/1/22 207,000 364,000 763,000

Growth

Real GDP (QoQ SAAR) 2021Q3 2.3%
1

6.7% 33.8%
2 Real GDP (QoQ)

40%

GDP Personal Consumption (QoQ SAAR) 2021Q3 2.0%
1

12.0% 41.4%
2 30%

20%

10%

Retail Sales (YoY) Nov '21 18.2% 14.2% 2.3% 0%

-10%

ISM Manufacturing Survey (month) Dec '21 58.7 61.1 60.5
-20%

-30%

-40%

Existing Home Sales SAAR (month) Nov '21 6.46 mil. 6.29 mil. 6.65 mil.
Sep '18  Mar '19 Sep '19  Mar '20 Sep '20  Mar '21 Sep '21

Inflation/Prices

Personal Consumption Expenditures (YoY) Nov '21 5.7% 4.4% 1.3%
Consumer Price Index

CPI (YoY) Core CPI (YoY)
8%

Consumer Price Index (YoY) Nov '21 6.8% 5.4% 1.4% 7%
6%

Consumer Price Index Core(YoY) Nov '21 4.9% 4.0% 1.6%
5%
4%
3%

Crude Oil Futures (WTI, per barrel) Dec 31 $75.21 $75.03 $48.52
2%
1%
0%

Gold Futures (oz.) Dec 31 $1,829 $1,755 $1,895
Dec '18 Jun '19 Dec '19 Jun '20 Dec '20 Jun '21

1. Data as of Second Quarter 2021.

2. Data as of Third Quarter 2020.
Note: YoY = year-over-year, QoQ = quarter-over-quarter, SAAR = seasonally adjusted annual rate, WTI = West Texas Intermediate crude oil.

Source: Bloomberg.
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For the Quarter Ended December 31, 2021

Fixed Income ManagementQUARTERLY MARKET SUMMARY

Source: Bloomberg.

Interest Rate Overview

U.S. Treasury Note Yields U.S. Treasury Yield Curve

U.S. Treasury Yields Yield Curves as of 12/31/2021
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2-Year 5-Year 10-Year

Maturity Dec '21 Sep '21
Change over

Quarter
Dec '20

Change over

Year

3-Month 0.04% 0.04% 0.00% 0.07% (0.03%)

1-Year 0.38% 0.07% 0.31% 0.11% 0.27%

2-Year 0.73% 0.28% 0.45% 0.12% 0.61%

5-Year 1.26% 0.97% 0.29% 0.36% 0.90%

10-Year 1.51% 1.49% 0.02% 0.92% 0.59%

30-Year 1.90% 2.05% (0.15%) 1.65% 0.25%
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For the Quarter Ended December 31, 2021

Fixed Income ManagementQUARTERLY MARKET SUMMARY

December 31, 2021 Duration Yield 3 Month 1 Year 3 Years

1-3 Year Indices

U.S. Treasury 1.88 0.70% (0.53%) (0.55%) 2.01%

Federal Agency 1.78 0.68% (0.49%) (0.43%) 1.89%

U.S. Corporates, A-AAA rated 1.83 1.04% (0.57%) (0.24%) 2.88%

Agency MBS (0 to 3 years) 1.87 0.78% (0.63%) (2.66%) 2.49%

Taxable Municipals 1.51 0.94% (0.47%) 2.02% 3.58%

1-5 Year Indices

U.S. Treasury 2.64 0.87% (0.68%) (1.10%) 2.42%

Federal Agency 2.39 0.84% (0.70%) (0.86%) 2.07%

U.S. Corporates, A-AAA rated 2.75 1.30% (0.69%) (0.64%) 3.65%

Agency MBS (0 to 5 years) 2.87 1.64% (0.75%) (1.56%) 2.59%

Taxable Municipals 2.52 1.17% (0.67%) 0.46% 3.34%

Master Indices (Maturities 1 Year or Greater)

U.S. Treasury 7.37 1.24% 0.35% (2.38%) 4.16%

Federal Agency 3.99 1.08% (0.37%) (1.15%) 3.43%

U.S. Corporates, A-AAA rated 8.47 2.09% 0.20% (1.73%) 6.71%

Agency MBS (0 to 30 years) 3.82 1.85% (0.42%) (1.21%) 3.08%

Taxable Municipals 11.18 2.55% 0.64% 1.41% 8.83%

As of 12/31/2021 Returns for Periods ended 12/31/2021

Returns for periods greater than one year are annualized. 

Source: ICE BofAML Indices.

ICE BofAML Index Returns
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For the Quarter Ended December 31, 2021

Fixed Income ManagementQUARTERLY MARKET SUMMARY

Disclosures

PFM Asset Management LLC (“PFMAM”) is an investment adviser registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and a subsidiary of U.S. Bancorp Asset  

Management, Inc. (“USBAM”). USBAM is a subsidiary of U.S. Bank National Association (“U.S. Bank”). U.S. Bank is a separate entity and subsidiary of U.S. Bancorp. U.S. 

Bank is not responsible for and does not guarantee the products, services or performance of PFMAM.

The views expressed within this material constitute the perspective and judgment of PFM Asset Management LLC at the time of distribution and are subject to change.  

Information is obtained from sources generally believed to be reliable and available to the public; however, PFM Asset Management LLC cannot guarantee its accuracy, 

completeness, or suitability. The information contained in this report is not an offer to purchase or sell any securities.

NOT FDIC INSURED : NO BANK GUARANTEE : MAY LOSE VALUE

Further distribution is not permitted without prior written consent.
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PFM Asset Management LLC

For the Quarter Ended December 31, 2021

CLIENT NAME Market UpdateCLIENT NAME

For the Quarter Ended December 31, 2021

Market Update

© PFM Asset Management LLC | pfmam.com

Fixed-Income Sector Commentary – 4Q 2021

� U.S. Treasury securities generated negative 

performance as yields rose across maturities.  The 

higher absolute level of yields support duration 

extensions and roll-down where the curve is steep.

� Federal agency spreads widened modestly, 

generating slightly negative excess returns. Spreads 

remain tight by historical standards and opportunities 

to add will be limited.

� Supranational securities performed in line with their 

federal agency counterparts – supply from seasonal 

issuance should provide opportunities to add sector 

exposure.

� Corporates underperformed after consistently being 

one of the top performing sectors in prior quarters. 

Modestly wider spreads are likely to provide 

opportunities to increase exposure on an issuer-

specific basis.

� Asset-Backed Securities issuance remains robust 

and wider spreads enhance the sector’s relative value 

as collateral performance remains strong.

� Mortgage-Backed Securities performance was 

generally negative across collateral and coupon types 

with 15-yr MBS pools being the exception. FOMC 

asset purchase tapering and potential balance sheet 

reduction will continue to weigh negatively on the 

sector.

� Taxable Municipal securities were one of the best 

performing sectors in Q4. Limited supply is likely to 

keep downward pressure on spreads and limit 

opportunities to increase allocations.

� Commercial Paper and CD rates gravitated higher 

throughout the quarter as market expectations for rate 

hikes sent short maturities higher, creating 

opportunities to add.

CITY OF CHANDLER

For the Quarter Ended December 31, 2021

Market Update
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Account Summary

Yield at market, yield on cost, and portfolio duration only include investments held within the separately managed account(s).1.

CHANDLER WORKERS COMP & EMPLOYER TRUST

Portfolio Values December 31, 2021

$13,510,358

$13,581,121

$13,510,358

PFM Managed Account

Amortized Cost

Market Value

Accrued Interest $18,865

Analytics¹ December 31, 2021

0.69%

0.48%

1.77

Yield at Market

Yield on Cost

Portfolio Duration

10

stropes
Highlight



Sector Allocation Analytics

For informational/analytical purposes only and is not provided for compliance assurance. 
*Sector Limit for Analysis is subject to interpretation as derived from our interpretation of your Investment Policy as provided.
Detail may not add to total due to rounding.

8.1%

5.5%

5.2%

0.4%

33.2%

47.6%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

First American Funds - 
$1,185,140

Corporate - $802,073

Negotiable CD - $768,372

Municipal - $53,975

Federal Agency- $4,886,809

U.S. Treasury - $6,999,130

Portfolio Allocation Sector Limit for Analysis*

CITY OF CHANDLER

For the Quarter Ended December 31, 2021

Account Summary
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Ratings shown are calculated by assigning a numeral value to each security rating, then calculating a weighted average rating for each security type / issuer category using all available security ratings,

excluding Not-Rated (NR) ratings. For security type / issuer categories where a rating from the applicable NRSRO is not available, a rating of NR is assigned. Excludes balances invested in money market

funds.

Issuer Diversification

Market Value (%) S&P / Moody's / FitchSecurity Type / Issuer

U.S. Treasury 51.8%

UNITED STATES TREASURY 51.8% AA / Aaa / AAA

Federal Agency 36.2%

FANNIE MAE 8.0% AA / Aaa / AAA

FREDDIE MAC 28.2% AA / Aaa / AAA

Municipal 0.4%

CITY OF SCOTTSDALE 0.4% AAA / Aaa / AAA

Negotiable CD 5.7%

CREDIT SUISSE GROUP RK 0.7% A / A / A

DNB ASA 0.5% AA / Aa / NR

HSBC HOLDINGS PLC 0.9% A / Aa / AA

NORDEA BANK ABP 0.9% AA / Aa / AA

SKANDINAVISKA ENSKILDA BANKEN AB 1.0% A / Aa / AA

SUMITOMO MITSUI FINANCIAL GROUP INC 0.6% A / Aa / A

UBS AG 1.1% A / Aa / AA

Corporate 5.9%

ADOBE INC 0.7% A / A / NR

AMAZON.COM INC 1.3% AA / A / AA

BANK OF AMERICA CO 0.7% A / A / AA

CATERPILLAR INC 0.7% A / A / A

HERSHEY COMPANY 0.7% A / A / NR

JP MORGAN CHASE & CO 1.3% A / A / AA

TOYOTA MOTOR CORP 0.6% A / A / A

100.0%Total

12
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1. Total market value includes accrued interest and balances invested in PFM Funds, as of December 31, 2021.

Calculations exclude balances invested in PFM Funds.

2. The portfolio’s benchmark is the currently the ICE BofAML 1-3 Year U.S Treasury Index. Prior to 3/31/17 it was the ICE BofAML 0-3 Year U.S Treasury Index. Source:

Bloomberg. An average of each security’s credit rating was assigned a numeric value and adjusted for its relative weighting in the portfolio.

Portfolio Statistics

Total Market Value $13,539,391

Portfolio Effective Duration 1.77 years

Benchmark Effective Duration 1.82 years

Yield At Cost 0.48%

Yield At Market 0.69%

Portfolio Credit Quality AA

Portfolio Snapshot¹

Credit Quality - S&P2

11%

53%

33%

4%
6%

55%

39%

0%
0%

20%

40%

60%

0-1 Yr 1-2 Yrs 2-3 Yrs 3-4 Yrs

Portfolio Benchmark

Duration Distribution

U.S. Treasury | 52%

Federal Agency | 36%

Corporate | 6%

Negotiable CD | 6%

Municipal | <1%

Sector Allocation

AAA | <1%

AAAm | <1%

AA+ | 88%

AA | 1%

A-1+ | 1%

A+ | 2%

A | 1%

A- | 2%

A-1 | 4%
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Liquidity Vehicle Quarter-End Yield

Wells Fargo Public Institutional 
Bank Deposit Account1 0.01%

First American Funds2 0.01%

1. Wells Fargo Public Institutional Bank Deposit Account yield from the Trust custody statement as of 12/31/21.

2. First American Funds Account yield from statement as of 12/31/21.

CITY OF CHANDLER

For the Quarter Ended December 31, 2021

Portfolio Snapshot
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|
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Sector Allocation Review 

U.S. Treasury Federal Agency Municipal Negotiable CD Corporate Local Government Investment Pool

Market values, excluding accrued interest. Only includes investments held within the separately managed account(s). Detail may not add to total due to rounding.

Mar-21 % of TotalSecurity Type Jun-21 % of Total Sep-21 % of Total % of TotalDec-21

U.S. Treasury $2.8 23.1% $4.1 30.1% $6.4 44.0% $7.0 51.8%

Federal Agency $7.0 57.4% $6.2 45.2% $5.0 34.4% $4.9 36.2%

Municipal $0.1 0.4% $0.1 0.4% $0.1 0.4% $0.1 0.4%

Negotiable CD $1.1 9.0% $1.1 8.1% $1.0 6.9% $0.8 5.7%

Corporate $0.9 7.5% $1.0 7.5% $0.9 6.2% $0.8 5.9%

Local Government Investment Pool $0.3 2.6% $1.2 8.7% $1.2 8.1% $0.0 0.0%

Total $12.3 100.0% $13.7 100.0% $14.6 100.0% $13.5 100.0%
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The lesser of 10 years or since inception is shown. Since inception returns for periods one year or less are not shown. Performance inception date is March 31, 2013.1.

Returns for periods one year or less are presented on a periodic basis. Returns for periods greater than one year are presented on an annualized basis.2.

The portfolio’s benchmark is currently the ICE BofAML 1-3 Year U.S Treasury Index. Prior to 3/31/17 it was the ICE BofAML 0-3 Year U.S Treasury Index. Source: Bloomberg.3.
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Portfolio Benchmark

Portfolio Performance

Market Value Basis Earnings 3 Months 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years Since Inception¹

$20,338 $81,243 $420,930 $604,873 $1,009,643Interest Earned

Change in Market Value ($92,789) ($148,144) ($118,170) ($139,315) ($380,640)

($72,451)Total Dollar Return ($66,901) $302,760 $465,558 $629,003

Total Return2

Portfolio -0.50% -0.46% 1.98% 1.70% 1.25%

Benchmark3 -0.53% -0.55% 2.02% 1.60% 0.88%

3 Months 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years Since Inception

Difference 0.03% 0.09% -0.04% 0.10% 0.37%
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For the Quarter Ended December 31, 2021

Portfolio Performance
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The lesser of 10 years or since inception is shown. Performance inception date is March 31, 2013.1.

Interest earned calculated as the ending accrued interest less beginning accrued interest, plus net interest activity.2.

Realized gains / (losses) are shown on an amortized cost basis.3.

Accrual Basis Earnings

Accrual Basis Earnings

Interest Earned2

Realized Gains / (Losses)3 
Change in Amortized Cost

Total Earnings

3 Months

$20,338

$5,523

($3,527)

$22,335

1 Year

$81,243

$51,951

($8,911)

$124,282

3 Years

$420,930

$162,762

$33,502

$617,195

5 Year

$604,873

$133,921

$49,892

$788,686

Since Inception1

$1,009,643

$144,537

($194,747)

$959,433
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Portfolio Composition

|

Issuer Distribution

As of December 31, 2021

Issuer Market Value ($) % of Portfolio

UNITED STATES TREASURY 6,999,130 51.80%

FREDDIE MAC 3,809,081 28.19%

FANNIE MAE 1,077,728 7.98%

JP MORGAN CHASE & CO 172,692 1.28%

AMAZON.COM INC 170,653 1.26%

UBS AG 149,939 1.11%

SKANDINAVISKA ENSKILDA BANKEN AB 131,256 0.97%

HSBC HOLDINGS PLC 120,013 0.89%

NORDEA BANK ABP 116,103 0.86%

ADOBE INC 101,102 0.75%

CREDIT SUISSE GROUP RK 99,978 0.74%

BANK OF AMERICA CO 99,342 0.74%

CATERPILLAR INC 94,716 0.70%

HERSHEY COMPANY 87,934 0.65%

SUMITOMO MITSUI FINANCIAL GROUP INC 85,159 0.63%

TOYOTA MOTOR CORP 75,634 0.56%

DNB ASA 65,924 0.49%

CITY OF SCOTTSDALE 53,975 0.40%

PFM FUNDS - GOVT SELECT, INSTL CL 0.00%

13,510,358Grand Total 100.00%
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Portfolio Holdings

|

Managed Account Detail of Securities Held

Security Type/Description

Dated Date/Coupon/Maturity CUSIP Par

S&P

Rating

Moody's

Rating

Settle

Date

Original

Cost

Trade

Date

YTM

at Cost

Accrued

Interest

Market

Value

U.S. Treasury

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 11/30/2015 2.000% 11/30/2022
912828M80 20,000.00 AA+ Aaa 8/1/2019 8/2/2019 20,119.53 1.81 35.16 20,290.62

US TREASURY NOTES
DTD 12/15/2019 1.625% 12/15/2022

912828YW4 259,000.00 AA+ Aaa 1/3/2020 1/7/2020 259,465.39 1.56 196.56 262,035.17

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 12/31/2015 2.125% 12/31/2022
912828N30 30,000.00 AA+ Aaa 11/1/2019 11/5/2019 30,530.86 1.55 1.76 30,501.56

US TREASURY NOTES
DTD 01/15/2020 1.500% 01/15/2023

912828Z29 120,000.00 AA+ Aaa 2/3/2020 2/5/2020 120,585.94 1.33 831.52 121,312.50

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 02/15/2020 1.375% 02/15/2023
912828Z86 530,000.00 AA+ Aaa 3/2/2020 3/4/2020 538,943.75 0.80 2,752.62 535,548.46

US TREASURY N/B NOTES
DTD 05/31/2021 0.125% 05/31/2023

91282CCD1 885,000.00 AA+ Aaa 8/2/2021 8/6/2021 884,516.02 0.16 97.25 879,468.75

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 06/15/2020 0.250% 06/15/2023
912828ZU7 230,000.00 AA+ Aaa 8/23/2021 8/24/2021 230,152.73 0.21 26.85 228,921.88

US TREASURY NOTES
DTD 10/01/2018 2.875% 09/30/2023

9128285D8 285,000.00 AA+ Aaa 9/27/2021 9/28/2021 299,639.65 0.30 2,093.46 295,865.63

US TREASURY NOTES
DTD 01/15/2021 0.125% 01/15/2024

91282CBE0 588,000.00 AA+ Aaa 2/2/2021 2/4/2021 587,058.28 0.18 339.54 580,558.15

US TREASURY NOTES
DTD 02/15/2021 0.125% 02/15/2024

91282CBM2 50,000.00 AA+ Aaa 3/1/2021 3/1/2021 49,787.11 0.27 23.61 49,351.56

US TREASURY NOTES
DTD 02/15/2021 0.125% 02/15/2024

91282CBM2 375,000.00 AA+ Aaa 3/4/2021 3/9/2021 372,993.16 0.31 177.06 370,136.70

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 02/15/2021 0.125% 02/15/2024
91282CBM2 100,000.00 AA+ Aaa 3/3/2021 3/4/2021 99,511.72 0.29 47.22 98,703.12

US TREASURY NOTES
DTD 03/15/2021 0.250% 03/15/2024

91282CBR1 305,000.00 AA+ Aaa 9/27/2021 9/28/2021 303,701.37 0.42 227.49 301,378.12

US TREASURY NOTES

DTD 03/15/2021 0.250% 03/15/2024
91282CBR1 625,000.00 AA+ Aaa 4/5/2021 4/7/2021 622,973.63 0.36 466.16 617,578.13

US TREASURY N/B NOTES

DTD 04/15/2021 0.375% 04/15/2024
91282CBV2 595,000.00 AA+ Aaa 5/3/2021 5/4/2021 595,952.93 0.32 478.13 588,957.06
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|

Security Type/Description

Dated Date/Coupon/Maturity CUSIP Par

S&P

Rating

Moody's

Rating

Settle

Date

Original

Cost

Trade

Date

YTM

at Cost

Accrued

Interest

Market

Value

U.S. Treasury

US TREASURY N/B NOTES

DTD 05/15/2021 0.250% 05/15/2024
91282CCC3 200,000.00 AA+ Aaa 6/1/2021 6/2/2021 199,679.69 0.30 64.92 197,281.24

US TREASURY N/B NOTES

DTD 09/15/2021 0.375% 09/15/2024
91282CCX7 235,000.00 AA+ Aaa 10/4/2021 10/6/2021 234,127.93 0.50 262.91 231,658.58

US TREASURY N/B NOTES

DTD 09/15/2021 0.375% 09/15/2024
91282CCX7 305,000.00 AA+ Aaa 9/27/2021 9/28/2021 303,391.60 0.55 341.23 300,663.27

US TREASURY N/B NOTES
DTD 10/15/2021 0.625% 10/15/2024

91282CDB4 105,000.00 AA+ Aaa 11/2/2021 11/3/2021 104,700.59 0.72 140.63 104,146.88

US TREASURY N/B NOTES
DTD 11/15/2021 0.750% 11/15/2024

91282CDH1 465,000.00 AA+ Aaa 12/3/2021 12/7/2021 462,983.79 0.90 452.80 462,457.01

US TREASURY NOTES
DTD 11/30/2019 1.500% 11/30/2024

912828YV6 260,000.00 AA+ Aaa 6/2/2021 6/4/2021 269,638.28 0.43 342.86 264,062.50

US TREASURY N/B NOTES

DTD 12/15/2021 1.000% 12/15/2024
91282CDN8 185,000.00 AA+ Aaa 12/9/2021 12/15/2021 185,028.91 0.99 86.40 185,173.44

US TREASURY NOTES
DTD 01/31/2020 1.375% 01/31/2025

912828Z52 270,000.00 AA+ Aaa 7/2/2021 7/7/2021 277,519.92 0.58 1,553.60 273,079.67

7,022,000.00 7,053,002.78 11,039.74 6,999,130.00Security Type Sub-Total 0.49

Negotiable CD

HSBC BANK USA NA
DTD 02/26/2021 0.250% 02/25/2022

40435RKU4 120,000.00 A-1 P-1 2/26/2021 2/26/2021 120,000.00 0.25 257.50 120,012.84

SUMITOMO MITSUI BANK NY CERT

DEPOS
DTD 07/14/2020 0.700% 07/08/2022

86565CKU2 85,000.00 A-1 P-1 7/10/2020 7/14/2020 85,000.00 0.70 292.54 85,159.12

UBS AG STAMFORD CT CERT DEPOS
DTD 02/18/2021 0.250% 08/16/2022

90275DNC0 150,000.00 A-1 P-1 2/16/2021 2/18/2021 150,000.00 0.25 143.75 149,938.50

NORDEA BANK ABP NEW YORK CERT
DEPOS

DTD 08/29/2019 1.850% 08/26/2022

65558TLL7 115,000.00 A-1+ P-1 8/27/2019 8/29/2019 115,000.00 1.84 756.44 116,103.43

SKANDINAV ENSKILDA BANK LT CD

DTD 09/03/2019 1.860% 08/26/2022
83050PDR7 130,000.00 A-1 P-1 8/29/2019 9/3/2019 130,000.00 1.85 859.73 131,255.67

DNB BANK ASA/NY LT CD

DTD 12/06/2019 2.040% 12/02/2022
23341VZT1 65,000.00 A-1+ P-1 12/5/2019 12/6/2019 65,000.00 2.03 110.50 65,924.24
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Security Type/Description

Dated Date/Coupon/Maturity CUSIP Par

S&P

Rating

Moody's

Rating

Settle

Date

Original

Cost

Trade

Date

YTM

at Cost

Accrued

Interest

Market

Value

Negotiable CD

CREDIT SUISSE NEW YORK CERT

DEPOS

DTD 03/23/2021 0.590% 03/17/2023

22552G3C2 100,000.00 A+ A1 3/19/2021 3/23/2021 100,000.00 0.59 465.44 99,977.80

765,000.00 765,000.00 2,885.90 768,371.60Security Type Sub-Total 1.01

Municipal

SCOTTSDALE, AZ TXBL GO BONDS

DTD 12/30/2020 0.608% 07/01/2025
810454BL1 55,000.00 AAA Aaa 12/10/2020 12/30/2020 55,000.00 0.61 167.20 53,975.35

55,000.00 55,000.00 167.20 53,975.35Security Type Sub-Total 0.61

Local Government Investment Pool

PFM Funds - Govt Select, Instl Cl 0.00 AAAm NR 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00Security Type Sub-Total 0.00

Federal Agency

FREDDIE MAC NOTES
DTD 04/20/2020 0.375% 04/20/2023

3137EAEQ8 150,000.00 AA+ Aaa 4/17/2020 4/20/2020 149,625.00 0.46 110.94 149,730.45

FREDDIE MAC NOTES
DTD 05/07/2020 0.375% 05/05/2023

3137EAER6 100,000.00 AA+ Aaa 8/3/2020 8/4/2020 100,490.00 0.20 58.33 99,774.60

FREDDIE MAC NOTES

DTD 05/07/2020 0.375% 05/05/2023
3137EAER6 375,000.00 AA+ Aaa 5/7/2020 5/8/2020 375,558.75 0.32 218.75 374,154.75

FREDDIE MAC NOTES
DTD 05/07/2020 0.375% 05/05/2023

3137EAER6 1,295,000.00 AA+ Aaa 6/2/2020 6/5/2020 1,297,408.70 0.31 755.42 1,292,081.07

FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 05/22/2020 0.250% 05/22/2023
3135G04Q3 135,000.00 AA+ Aaa 5/20/2020 5/22/2020 134,593.65 0.35 36.56 134,433.81

FREDDIE MAC NOTES
DTD 06/26/2020 0.250% 06/26/2023

3137EAES4 160,000.00 AA+ Aaa 6/24/2020 6/26/2020 159,532.80 0.35 5.56 159,212.96

FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 07/10/2020 0.250% 07/10/2023
3135G05G4 210,000.00 AA+ Aaa 7/8/2020 7/10/2020 209,548.50 0.32 249.38 208,845.21
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Security Type/Description

Dated Date/Coupon/Maturity CUSIP Par

S&P

Rating

Moody's

Rating

Settle

Date

Original

Cost

Trade

Date

YTM

at Cost

Accrued

Interest

Market

Value

Federal Agency

FANNIE MAE NOTES (CALLABLE)

DTD 08/10/2020 0.300% 08/10/2023
3135G05R0 240,000.00 AA+ Aaa 8/11/2020 8/12/2020 239,568.00 0.36 282.00 238,532.16

FANNIE MAE NOTES (CALLABLE)

DTD 08/18/2020 0.360% 08/18/2023
3135G05V1 145,000.00 AA+ Aaa 8/20/2020 8/21/2020 145,000.00 0.36 192.85 144,220.63

FREDDIE MAC NOTES

DTD 08/21/2020 0.250% 08/24/2023
3137EAEV7 105,000.00 AA+ Aaa 8/19/2020 8/21/2020 104,892.90 0.28 92.60 104,325.17

FREDDIE MAC NOTES
DTD 09/04/2020 0.250% 09/08/2023

3137EAEW5 50,000.00 AA+ Aaa 9/2/2020 9/4/2020 50,009.13 0.24 39.24 49,637.85

FREDDIE MAC NOTES
DTD 09/04/2020 0.250% 09/08/2023

3137EAEW5 70,000.00 AA+ Aaa 9/2/2020 9/4/2020 69,976.90 0.26 54.93 69,492.99

FREDDIE MAC NOTES
DTD 10/16/2020 0.125% 10/16/2023

3137EAEY1 155,000.00 AA+ Aaa 10/14/2020 10/16/2020 154,421.85 0.25 40.36 153,382.11

FREDDIE MAC NOTES

DTD 11/05/2020 0.250% 11/06/2023
3137EAEZ8 570,000.00 AA+ Aaa 11/3/2020 11/5/2020 569,487.00 0.28 217.71 564,960.63

FANNIE MAE NOTES
DTD 11/25/2020 0.250% 11/27/2023

3135G06H1 150,000.00 AA+ Aaa 11/23/2020 11/25/2020 149,829.00 0.29 35.42 148,604.10

FANNIE MAE NOTES

DTD 11/25/2020 0.250% 11/27/2023
3135G06H1 205,000.00 AA+ Aaa 1/7/2021 1/8/2021 205,055.35 0.24 48.40 203,092.27

FREDDIE MAC NOTES
DTD 12/04/2020 0.250% 12/04/2023

3137EAFA2 95,000.00 AA+ Aaa 12/2/2020 12/4/2020 94,905.95 0.28 17.81 94,088.95

FREDDIE MAC NOTES

DTD 12/04/2020 0.250% 12/04/2023
3137EAFA2 705,000.00 AA+ Aaa 12/4/2020 12/7/2020 704,739.15 0.26 132.19 698,239.05

4,915,000.00 4,914,642.63 2,588.45 4,886,808.76Security Type Sub-Total 0.30

Corporate

AMAZON.COM INC CORP NOTES

DTD 11/29/2012 2.500% 11/29/2022
023135AJ5 100,000.00 AA A1 6/9/2020 6/11/2020 104,546.00 0.64 222.22 101,382.10

ADOBE INC CORP NOTE
DTD 02/03/2020 1.700% 02/01/2023

00724PAA7 100,000.00 A+ A2 1/22/2020 2/3/2020 99,863.00 1.75 708.33 101,101.70

CATERPILLAR FINL SERVICE

CORPORATE NOTES

DTD 03/01/2021 0.250% 03/01/2023

14913R2J5 95,000.00 A A2 2/22/2021 3/1/2021 94,918.30 0.29 79.17 94,716.43
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Security Type/Description

Dated Date/Coupon/Maturity CUSIP Par

S&P

Rating

Moody's

Rating

Settle

Date

Original

Cost

Trade

Date

YTM

at Cost

Accrued

Interest

Market

Value

Corporate

HERSHEY COMPANY

DTD 05/10/2018 3.375% 05/15/2023
427866AZ1 85,000.00 A A1 3/11/2020 3/13/2020 88,299.70 2.10 366.56 87,933.69

TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP
CORPORATE NOTES
DTD 05/26/2020 1.350% 08/25/2023

89236THA6 75,000.00 A+ A1 5/20/2020 5/26/2020 74,972.25 1.36 354.38 75,633.60

AMAZON.COM INC CORPORATE
NOTES
DTD 05/12/2021 0.450% 05/12/2024

023135BW5 70,000.00 AA A1 5/10/2021 5/12/2021 69,897.80 0.50 42.88 69,271.23

BANK OF AMERICA CORP

(CALLABLE) CORPORAT
DTD 10/21/2020 0.810% 10/24/2024

06051GJH3 100,000.00 A- A2 10/16/2020 10/21/2020 100,000.00 0.81 150.75 99,341.50

JPMORGAN CHASE & CO
CORPORATE NOTES
DTD 06/01/2021 0.824% 06/01/2025

46647PCH7 115,000.00 A- A2 5/24/2021 6/1/2021 115,000.00 0.82 78.97 113,627.02

JPMORGAN CHASE & CO
CORPORATE NOTES

DTD 08/10/2021 0.768% 08/09/2025

46647PCM6 60,000.00 A- A2 8/3/2021 8/10/2021 60,000.00 0.77 180.48 59,065.44

800,000.00 807,497.05 2,183.74 802,072.71Security Type Sub-Total 1.01

13,557,000.00 13,595,142.46 18,865.03 13,510,358.42Managed Account Sub Total

Securities Sub Total

Accrued Interest

$13,557,000.00 $13,595,142.46 $18,865.03 $13,510,358.42

$18,865.03

Total Investments $13,529,223.45

24



© PFM Asset Management LLC     pfmam.com

CITY OF CHANDLER

For the Quarter Ended December 31, 2021

Portfolio Activity

|

Quarterly Portfolio Transactions

Trade

Date

Settle

Date Par ($) CUSIP

Maturity

Date

Transact

Amount ($)Coupon

Yield

at Market

Realized

G/L (BV)Security Description

BUY

10/4/2021 10/6/2021 235,000.00 91282CCX7 US TREASURY N/B NOTES 0.37% 9/15/2024 234,179.05 0.50%

11/2/2021 11/3/2021 105,000.00 91282CDB4 US TREASURY N/B NOTES 0.62% 10/15/2024 104,734.84 0.72%

12/3/2021 12/7/2021 465,000.00 91282CDH1 US TREASURY N/B NOTES 0.75% 11/15/2024 463,195.74 0.90%

12/9/2021 12/15/2021 185,000.00 91282CDN8 US TREASURY N/B NOTES 1.00% 12/15/2024 185,028.91 0.99%

Total  BUY 990,000.00 987,138.54 0.00

INTEREST

8/16/2021 10/1/2021 150,000.00 90275DNC0 UBS AG STAMFORD CT CERT DEPOS 0.25% 8/16/2022 186.46

10/1/2021 10/1/2021 MONEY0002 MONEY MARKET FUND 2.78

10/15/2021 10/15/2021 595,000.00 91282CBV2 US TREASURY N/B NOTES 0.37% 4/15/2024 1,115.63

10/16/2021 10/16/2021 155,000.00 3137EAEY1 FREDDIE MAC NOTES 0.12% 10/16/2023 96.88

10/20/2021 10/20/2021 150,000.00 3137EAEQ8 FREDDIE MAC NOTES 0.37% 4/20/2023 281.25

10/24/2021 10/24/2021 100,000.00 06051GJH3 BANK OF AMERICA CORP (CALLABLE) CORPORAT 0.81% 10/24/2024 405.00

11/1/2021 11/1/2021 MONEY0002 MONEY MARKET FUND 0.09

11/5/2021 11/5/2021 1,770,000.00 3137EAER6 FREDDIE MAC NOTES 0.37% 5/5/2023 3,318.75

11/6/2021 11/6/2021 570,000.00 3137EAEZ8 FREDDIE MAC NOTES 0.25% 11/6/2023 712.50

11/12/2021 11/12/2021 70,000.00 023135BW5 AMAZON.COM INC CORPORATE NOTES 0.45% 5/12/2024 157.50

11/15/2021 11/15/2021 200,000.00 91282CCC3 US TREASURY N/B NOTES 0.25% 5/15/2024 250.00
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Quarterly Portfolio Transactions

Trade

Date

Settle

Date Par ($) CUSIP

Maturity

Date

Transact

Amount ($)Coupon

Yield

at Market

Realized

G/L (BV)Security Description

INTEREST

11/15/2021 11/15/2021 85,000.00 427866AZ1 HERSHEY COMPANY 3.37% 5/15/2023 1,434.38

11/15/2021 11/15/2021 340,000.00 912828TY6 US TREASURY NOTES 1.62% 11/15/2022 2,762.50

11/22/2021 11/22/2021 135,000.00 3135G04Q3 FANNIE MAE NOTES 0.25% 5/22/2023 168.75

11/27/2021 11/27/2021 355,000.00 3135G06H1 FANNIE MAE NOTES 0.25% 11/27/2023 443.75

11/29/2021 11/29/2021 100,000.00 023135AJ5 AMAZON.COM INC CORP NOTES 2.50% 11/29/2022 1,250.00

11/30/2021 11/30/2021 20,000.00 912828M80 US TREASURY NOTES 2.00% 11/30/2022 200.00

11/30/2021 11/30/2021 260,000.00 912828YV6 US TREASURY NOTES 1.50% 11/30/2024 1,950.00

11/30/2021 11/30/2021 885,000.00 91282CCD1 US TREASURY N/B NOTES 0.12% 5/31/2023 553.13

12/1/2021 12/1/2021 MONEY0002 MONEY MARKET FUND 0.15

12/1/2021 12/1/2021 115,000.00 46647PCH7 JPMORGAN CHASE & CO CORPORATE NOTES 0.82% 6/1/2025 473.80

12/2/2021 12/2/2021 65,000.00 23341VZT1 DNB BANK ASA/NY LT CD 2.04% 12/2/2022 674.05

12/4/2021 12/4/2021 800,000.00 3137EAFA2 FREDDIE MAC NOTES 0.25% 12/4/2023 1,000.00

12/15/2021 12/15/2021 230,000.00 912828ZU7 US TREASURY NOTES 0.25% 6/15/2023 287.50

12/15/2021 12/15/2021 259,000.00 912828YW4 US TREASURY NOTES 1.62% 12/15/2022 2,104.38

12/26/2021 12/26/2021 160,000.00 3137EAES4 FREDDIE MAC NOTES 0.25% 6/26/2023 200.00

12/31/2021 12/31/2021 30,000.00 912828N30 US TREASURY NOTES 2.12% 12/31/2022 318.75

Total  INTEREST 7,599,000.00 20,347.98 0.00
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Quarterly Portfolio Transactions

Trade

Date

Settle

Date Par ($) CUSIP

Maturity

Date

Transact

Amount ($)Coupon

Yield

at Market

Realized

G/L (BV)Security Description

SELL

10/4/2021 10/6/2021 235,000.00 06742TWL6 BARCLAYS BANK PLC NY CERT DEPOS 0.29% 2/4/2022 235,556.98 110.22

11/2/2021 11/3/2021 105,000.00 3137EAET2 FREDDIE MAC NOTES 0.12% 7/25/2022 105,036.78 86.63

12/3/2021 12/7/2021 100,000.00 02665WCY5 AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE 2.20% 6/27/2022 101,896.78 999.76

12/3/2021 12/7/2021 340,000.00 912828TY6 US TREASURY NOTES 1.62% 11/15/2022 344,599.05 4,326.73

Total  SELL 780,000.00 787,089.59 5,523.34

27



© PFM Asset Management LLC     pfmam.com

CITY OF CHANDLER

For the Quarter Ended December 31, 2021

Portfolio Activity

|

Quarterly Portfolio Transactions

Trade

Date

Settle

Date Par ($) CUSIP

Maturity

Date

Transact

Amount ($)Coupon

Yield

at Market

Realized

G/L (BV)Security Description

Tran.

Type

10/4/2021 10/6/2021 235,000.00 91282CCX7 US TREASURY N/B NOTES 0.37% 9/15/2024 234,179.05 0.50%BUY

11/2/2021 11/3/2021 105,000.00 91282CDB4 US TREASURY N/B NOTES 0.62% 10/15/2024 104,734.84 0.72%BUY

12/3/2021 12/7/2021 465,000.00 91282CDH1 US TREASURY N/B NOTES 0.75% 11/15/2024 463,195.74 0.90%BUY

12/9/2021 12/15/2021 185,000.00 91282CDN8 US TREASURY N/B NOTES 1.00% 12/15/2024 185,028.91 0.99%BUY

8/16/2021 10/1/2021 150,000.00 90275DNC0 UBS AG STAMFORD CT CERT DEPOS 0.25% 8/16/2022 186.46INTEREST

10/1/2021 10/1/2021 MONEY0002 MONEY MARKET FUND 2.78INTEREST

10/15/2021 10/15/2021 595,000.00 91282CBV2 US TREASURY N/B NOTES 0.37% 4/15/2024 1,115.63INTEREST

10/16/2021 10/16/2021 155,000.00 3137EAEY1 FREDDIE MAC NOTES 0.12% 10/16/2023 96.88INTEREST

10/20/2021 10/20/2021 150,000.00 3137EAEQ8 FREDDIE MAC NOTES 0.37% 4/20/2023 281.25INTEREST

10/24/2021 10/24/2021 100,000.00 06051GJH3 BANK OF AMERICA CORP (CALLABLE) 0.81% 10/24/2024 405.00INTEREST

11/1/2021 11/1/2021 MONEY0002 MONEY MARKET FUND 0.09INTEREST

11/5/2021 11/5/2021 1,770,000.00 3137EAER6 FREDDIE MAC NOTES 0.37% 5/5/2023 3,318.75INTEREST

11/6/2021 11/6/2021 570,000.00 3137EAEZ8 FREDDIE MAC NOTES 0.25% 11/6/2023 712.50INTEREST

11/12/2021 11/12/2021 70,000.00 023135BW5 AMAZON.COM INC CORPORATE NOTES 0.45% 5/12/2024 157.50INTEREST

11/15/2021 11/15/2021 200,000.00 91282CCC3 US TREASURY N/B NOTES 0.25% 5/15/2024 250.00INTEREST

11/15/2021 11/15/2021 85,000.00 427866AZ1 HERSHEY COMPANY 3.37% 5/15/2023 1,434.38INTEREST

11/15/2021 11/15/2021 340,000.00 912828TY6 US TREASURY NOTES 1.62% 11/15/2022 2,762.50INTEREST

11/22/2021 11/22/2021 135,000.00 3135G04Q3 FANNIE MAE NOTES 0.25% 5/22/2023 168.75INTEREST

28



© PFM Asset Management LLC     pfmam.com

CITY OF CHANDLER

For the Quarter Ended December 31, 2021

Portfolio Activity

|

Quarterly Portfolio Transactions

Trade

Date

Settle

Date Par ($) CUSIP

Maturity

Date

Transact

Amount ($)Coupon

Yield

at Market

Realized

G/L (BV)Security Description

Tran.

Type

11/27/2021 11/27/2021 355,000.00 3135G06H1 FANNIE MAE NOTES 0.25% 11/27/2023 443.75INTEREST

11/29/2021 11/29/2021 100,000.00 023135AJ5 AMAZON.COM INC CORP NOTES 2.50% 11/29/2022 1,250.00INTEREST

11/30/2021 11/30/2021 20,000.00 912828M80 US TREASURY NOTES 2.00% 11/30/2022 200.00INTEREST

11/30/2021 11/30/2021 260,000.00 912828YV6 US TREASURY NOTES 1.50% 11/30/2024 1,950.00INTEREST

11/30/2021 11/30/2021 885,000.00 91282CCD1 US TREASURY N/B NOTES 0.12% 5/31/2023 553.13INTEREST

12/1/2021 12/1/2021 MONEY0002 MONEY MARKET FUND 0.15INTEREST

12/1/2021 12/1/2021 115,000.00 46647PCH7 JPMORGAN CHASE & CO CORPORATE 0.82% 6/1/2025 473.80INTEREST

12/2/2021 12/2/2021 65,000.00 23341VZT1 DNB BANK ASA/NY LT CD 2.04% 12/2/2022 674.05INTEREST

12/4/2021 12/4/2021 800,000.00 3137EAFA2 FREDDIE MAC NOTES 0.25% 12/4/2023 1,000.00INTEREST

12/15/2021 12/15/2021 230,000.00 912828ZU7 US TREASURY NOTES 0.25% 6/15/2023 287.50INTEREST

12/15/2021 12/15/2021 259,000.00 912828YW4 US TREASURY NOTES 1.62% 12/15/2022 2,104.38INTEREST

12/26/2021 12/26/2021 160,000.00 3137EAES4 FREDDIE MAC NOTES 0.25% 6/26/2023 200.00INTEREST

12/31/2021 12/31/2021 30,000.00 912828N30 US TREASURY NOTES 2.12% 12/31/2022 318.75INTEREST

10/4/2021 10/6/2021 235,000.00 06742TWL6 BARCLAYS BANK PLC NY CERT DEPOS 0.29% 2/4/2022 235,556.98 110.22SELL

11/2/2021 11/3/2021 105,000.00 3137EAET2 FREDDIE MAC NOTES 0.12% 7/25/2022 105,036.78 86.63SELL

12/3/2021 12/7/2021 100,000.00 02665WCY5 AMERICAN HONDA FINANCE 2.20% 6/27/2022 101,896.78 999.76SELL

12/3/2021 12/7/2021 340,000.00 912828TY6 US TREASURY NOTES 1.62% 11/15/2022 344,599.05 4,326.73SELL

TOTALS 1,794,576.11 5,523.349,369,000.00
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Important Disclosures

This material is for general information purposes only and is not intended to provide specific advice or a specific recommendation, as it was prepared without regard to

any specific objectives or financial circumstances.

Investment advisory services are provided by PFM Asset Management LLC ("PFMAM"), an investment adviser registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange

Commission and a subsidiary of U.S. Bancorp Asset Management, Inc. ("USBAM"). USBAM is a subsidiary of U.S. Bank National Association ("U.S. Bank").  U.S. Bank

is a separate entity and subsidiary of U.S. Bancorp.  U.S. Bank is not responsible for and does not guarantee the products, services or performance of PFMAM.  The

information contained is not an offer to purchase or sell any securities. Additional applicable regulatory information is available upon request.

PFMAM professionals have exercised reasonable professional care in the preparation of this performance report. Information in this report is obtained from sources

external to PFMAM and is generally believed to be reliable and available to the public; however, we cannot guarantee its accuracy, completeness or suitability. We rely

on the client's custodian for security holdings and market values. Transaction dates reported by the custodian may differ from money manager statements. While efforts

are made to ensure the data contained herein is accurate and complete, we disclaim all responsibility for any errors that may occur. References to particular issuers are

for illustrative purposes only and are not intended to be recommendations or advice regarding such issuers. Fixed income manager and index characteristics are

gathered from external sources. When average credit quality is not available, it is estimated by taking the market value weights of individual credit tiers on the portion of

the strategy rated by a NRSRO.

It is not possible to invest directly in an index. The index returns shown throughout this material do not represent the results of actual trading of investor assets.

Third-party providers maintain the indices shown and calculate the index levels and performance shown or discussed. Index returns do not reflect payment of any sales

charges or fees an investor would pay to purchase the securities they represent. The imposition of these fees and charges would cause investment performance to be

lower than the performance shown.

The views expressed within this material constitute the perspective and judgment of PFMAM at the time of distribution and are subject to change. Any forecast,

projection, or prediction of the market, the economy, economic trends, and equity or fixed-income markets are based upon certain assumptions and current opinion as

of the date of issue and are also subject to change. Some, but not all assumptions are noted in the report. Assumptions may or may not be proven correct as actual

events occur, and results may depend on events outside of your or our control. Changes in assumptions may have a material effect on results. Opinions and data

presented are not necessarily indicative of future events or expected performance.

For more information regarding PFMAM's services or entities, please visit www.pfmam.com.

© 2022 PFM Asset Management LLC. Further distribution is not permitted without prior written consent.
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Market values that include accrued interest are derived from closing bid prices as of the last business day of the month as supplied by Refinitiv, Bloomberg, or

Telerate. Where prices are not available from generally recognized sources, the securities are priced using a yield-based matrix system to arrive at an estimated

market value.

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, information is presented on a trade date basis; forward settling purchases are included in the monthly

balances, and forward settling sales are excluded.

Performance is presented in accordance with the CFA Institute's Global Investment Performance Standards (GIPS). Unless otherwise noted, performance is shown

gross of fees. Quarterly returns are presented on an unannualized basis. Returns for periods greater than one year are presented on an annualized basis. Past

performance is not indicative of future returns.

Bank of America/Merrill Lynch Indices provided by Bloomberg Financial Markets.

Money market fund/cash balances are included in performance and duration computations.

Standard & Poor's is the source of the credit ratings. Distribution of credit rating is exclusive of money market fund/LGIP holdings.

Callable securities in the portfolio are included in the maturity distribution analysis to their stated maturity date, although, they may be called prior to maturity.

MBS maturities are represented by expected average life.
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Glossary

Accrued Interest: Interest that is due on a bond or other fixed income security since the last interest payment was made.

Agencies: Federal agency securities and/or Government-sponsored enterprises.

Amortized Cost: The original cost of the principal of the security is adjusted for the amount of the periodic reduction of any discount or premium from the purchase

date until the date of the report. Discount or premium with respect to short-term securities (those with less than one year to maturity at time of issuance) is amortized

on a straight line basis. Such discount or premium with respect to longer-term securities is amortized using the constant yield basis.

Asset-Backed Security: A financial instrument collateralized by an underlying pool of assets – usually ones that generate a cash flow from debt, such as loans,

leases, credit card balances, and receivables.

Bankers’ Acceptance: A draft or bill or exchange accepted by a bank or trust company. The accepting institution guarantees payment of the bill as well as the insurer.

Commercial Paper: An unsecured obligation issued by a corporation or bank to finance its short-term credit needs, such as accounts receivable and inventory.

Contribution to Total Return: The weight of each individual security multiplied by its return, then summed for each sector to determine how much each sector added

or subtracted from the overall portfolio performance.

Effective Duration: A measure of the sensitivity of a security’s price to a change in interest rates, stated in years.

Effective Yield: The total yield an investor receives in relation to the nominal yield or coupon of a bond. Effective yield takes into account the power of compounding

on investment returns, while nominal yield does not.

FDIC: Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. A federal agency that insures bank deposits to a specified amount.

Interest Rate: Interest per year divided by principal amount and expressed as a percentage.

Market Value: The value that would be received or paid for an investment in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Maturity: The date upon which the principal or stated value of an investment becomes due and payable.

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit: A CD with a very large denomination, usually $1 million or more, that can be traded in secondary markets.

Par Value: The nominal dollar face amount of a security.

Pass-through Security: A security representing pooled debt obligations that passes income from debtors to its shareholders. The most common type is the

mortgage-backed security.
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Repurchase Agreements: A holder of securities sells these securities to an investor with an agreement to repurchase them at a fixed price on a fixed date.

Settle Date: The date on which the transaction is settled and monies/securities are exchanged. If the settle date of the transaction (i.e., coupon payments and

maturity proceeds) occurs on a non-business day, the funds are exchanged on the next business day.

Supranational: A multinational union or association in which member countries cede authority and sovereignty on at least some internal matters to the group, whose

decisions are binding on its members.

Trade Date: The date on which the transaction occurred; however, the final consummation of the security transaction and payment has not yet taken place.

Unsettled Trade: A trade which has been executed; however, the final consummation of the security transaction and payment has not yet taken place.

U.S. Treasury: The department of the U.S. government that issues Treasury securities.

Yield: The rate of return based on the current market value, the annual interest receipts, maturity value, and the time period remaining until maturity, stated as a

percentage on an annualized basis.

YTM at Cost: The yield to maturity at cost is the expected rate of return based on the original cost, the annual interest receipts, maturity value, and the time period

from purchase date to maturity, stated as a percentage on an annualized basis.

YTM at Market: The yield to maturity at market is the rate of return based on the current market value, the annual interest receipts, maturity value, and the time

period remaining until maturity, stated as a percentage on an annualized basis.
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ITEM  7 

Workers’ Compensation And Employer Liability Trust Board      Human
Resources  Memo No. 
       

Date: 02/03/2022
To: Workers’ Compensation And Employer Liability Trust Board
From: Teresa Canjar, Management Assistant
Subject: Resolution No. WC-009

Proposed Motion:
Move to approve Resolution No. WC-009 for the City of Chandler Workers'
Compensation and Employer Trust Liability Trust Fund Board Recommending
Workers' Compensation Contribution and Reserve Level for Fiscal Year 2022-23.

Attachments
Resolution WC-009 
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